Minutes

# **Certified Professional Guardianship Board**

Monday, April 13, 2015 (9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.) SeaTac Office Center 18000 International Blvd., Ste 1106 SeaTac, WA

#### **Proposed Meeting Minutes**

#### **Members Present**

Members Absent

Judge James Lawler, Chair Commissioner Rachelle Anderson Mr. Gary Beagle Ms. Rosslyn Bethmann Ms. Nancy Dapper Judge Gayle Harthcock Mr. Andrew Heinz Mr. William Jaback Commissioner Diana Kiesel Ms. Carol Sloan Mr. Gerald Tarutis Ms. Amanda Witthauer Dr. Barbara Cochrane Mr. Gerald Tarutis

## Staff

Ms. Shirley Bondon Ms. Carla Montejo Ms. Kim Rood

#### Guest

Ms. Mary Tennyson, Sr. Assistant Attorney General

## 1. Call to Order

Judge Lawler called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m.

#### 2. Welcome and Introductions

Judge Lawler welcomed everyone to the meeting, with a special welcome to new board members, Judge Gayle Harthcock, Yakima County Superior Court, and Ms. Amanda Witthauer, Certified Professional Guardian.

## 3. Public Comment Period

The following individuals made public comments:

- Ms. Mindi Blanchard, President, Bridge Builders, Ltd. Written comments are attached
- Ms. Claudia Donnelly Written comments not provided
- Mr. Tom Goldsmith Written comments not provided
- Ms. Grenda Voller, President, Washington Association of Professional Guardians (WAPG) – Written comments not provided

# 4. Members of the Public Participated in a Moderated Discussion with Board Members

The following topics were discussed:

- The Board's Communications Plan
- Rap Back, the new background procedure that would allow the Board to

receive notification each time a guardian applicant or a certified guardian has a change in criminal history

• Possible implementation of a Guardianship Ombudsperson

After discussion, the Board agreed to solicit public comment, via its Communications Plan, regarding establishing a Guardianship Ombudsperson.

# 5. Executive Session (Closed to Public)

## 6. Reconvene and Vote on Executive Session Discussion (Open to the Public)

## Applications Committee

**Motion:** A motion was made and seconded to approve the application of Ms. Nancy Snyder. The motion passed.

## 7. UW Guardianship Certificate Program Update

Ms. Malia Morrison, Program Manager, UWEO Guardianship Certificate Program

Ms. Morrison reported on the changes that the program instructor team made to the Guardianship Certificate program in response to eight suggestions made by the Board in the Memo of Understanding (MOA) signed the fall of 2014. Ms. Morrison worked with the instructor team last summer to address each of these suggestions and develop a plan of action. The suggestions and improvements are as follows:

- Students should obtain more introduction to the field of guardianship before starting the Guardianship Certificate Program. To accomplish this all prospective students are required to take the lay guardian training offered by the Administrative Office of the Courts before the first day of class. Ms. Morrison remarked that the lay guardian training was well received and gave the students more insight into the guardianship business. The training also helped students with terminology used in class. The instructor team gave it a thumbs up, and plans to continue the requirement.
- 2. Develop a common vocabulary that is used by professional guardians. As students proceed through the program, they are introduced to many new terms and concepts. According to alumni of the program, it would be very helpful for each new guardian to have a resource manual. The instructor team has encouraged each student to create their own resource manual of terms and resources. Ms. Morrison explained that the UW does not provide each student with a manual because geographically the resources may be very different.
- 3. Improve the accuracy of the online and printed materials. The UW hired a prior student to help the instructors team identify and correct inconsistencies.
- 4. Improve effectiveness of in-person class time. The program is 100 hours of

instruction, 56 hours are in-class, in-person. The remainder is online. The instructor team is looking for instruction that has been previously held in the classroom that can be presented effectively online.

- 5. Control classroom discussions. Awareness of this problem was brought to the attention of the instructor team. The team has acknowledged that this requires continuous attention.
- 6. Provide relevant and timely instructor feedback to students. Ms. Morrison stated that this year the instructors committed to provide feedback on one assignment before assigning a new one. In addition, this year students were divided into sections and each quarter a different instructor was responsible for grading the assignments of a section.
- 7. Improve assignments on court reporting. The program started offering optional field trips to court this last fall; and added content on 90 day reports to the spring online curriculum. Also a new format was used with online PowerPoint presentations that display the presenter on one half the screen and the PowerPoint on the other half. The UW is also hoping to secure videos from different courtrooms around the state and ask students to watch the videos that pertain to their geographical area, finishing with a discussion of their courtroom with their peers.
- 8. Increase communication between presenters and instructors. The instructor team decided on all the presenters for the year before the program started; sent out invitations in October and confirmed dates and topics early. They followed up with each presenter the month before their presentation. This helped to guide the presenter to a more detailed, less chaotic presentation.

The UW surveyed 184 guardianship certificate alumni and received 47 responses. This was a 26% response rate. Of the 47 responses (85%), 40 are CPGs and (15%), 7 are not. After completion of the program, an equal number of respondents are either sole practitioners or work for a guardianship agency. A few of the respondents were not practicing due to health issues.

CPG respondents were asked, "In retrospect, how helpful was the program to your practice as a professional guardian?" Eighty-five percent responded, "helpful" or "very helpful". UW noted that the number of persons responding that the program was "helpful" or "very helpful" increased with each graduating class. In 2011 or later, 91% agreed that the program was either "helpful" or "very helpful". Seventy-three percent of the students completing the program in 2010 or earlier, said it was "helpful" or "very helpful".

Lastly, Ms. Morrison spoke about the viability of holding in-person classes in Eastern Washington. UW Professional and Continuing Education is a unit of the University of Washington that is self-sustaining, meaning there is no state funding to operate these programs. These programs all need to break even, and all cost must be

covered by tuition. If a program cannot cover costs, it cannot continue. Twenty- six students are needed for the guardianship program to break even. The last seven offerings have started with 28 students. In the first year, the class was also offered in Spokane and Yakima, that offering had only 13 students. Due to low Spokane and Yakima enrollment the program was consolidated into one section in Bellevue.

The ideal option would be to offer a class in Seattle and one in Spokane, but given the data, there just isn't enough demand to fill two programs and break even. Given the geographic location of the students and the need to break even financially, the program did not find a feasible way of continuing the program in Eastern Washington.

In an attempt to ease the travel burden, the program is considering a travel stipend for those living 1 ½ hours drive from Bellevue. The travel stipend accommodation would be approximately \$100 to \$150 per quarter for those students needing that accommodation.

Mr. Beagle thanked Ms. Morrison for all the data that she provided in response to the Education Committee's concerns.

## 8. Education Committee

**A New Emerging Issue.** Mr. Beagle reported on a proposed new emerging issue to replace "How to manage a successful business". After discussing several topics the Education Committee felt that professional guardians would benefit with more education on communication with others, including the vulnerable adult's family members, providers, physicians and anyone else who functions in a service or care-giving role.

**Motion:** A motion was made and seconded to approve the Emerging Issues topic "Communication". The new issue would become effective on January 1, 2016. The motion passed.

## Proposal to Increase Access to Guardianship Continuing Education.

The Education Committee shared a proposal to modify the fee arrangement with sponsors of continuing education of professional guardians to require payment of a fee per professional guardian registrant. The proposed process requires sponsors to seek approval prior to the course, sign an agreement to pay a set fee per guardian registrant, and submit payment of fees to AOC at the completion of the course. If registrants aren't required to pay a fee, the sponsor won't pay a fee.

The sponsor who has two guardians attend a course, pays less than the sponsor who has 50 guardians attend. If a sponsor chooses not to seek approval, each individual guardian can seek approval and pay an assessment of no more than \$50.

The proposal should increase the number of quality educational offerings available to professional guardians; reduce risk for sponsors of continuing education; and eliminate perceived unfairness.

The Board compared the current process to the proposal and discussed pros and cons. Judge Lawler asked if the staff had received feedback from CPGs that indicated they were unable to obtain the required credits. Ms. Bondon stated that there are 28 CPGs who have not complied with continuing education requirements. The reason for noncompliance was not known.

The Board agreed to post the proposal for comment.

## 9. 2014 Grievance Report

AOC staff opened 61 grievances in 2014. Twenty-three grievances were closed by the end of the year, 35 grievances are pending.

Resolution - Grievances were closed in 2014 that had been received between 2011 and 2014. Approximately 85% of the grievances closed were dismissed; about 35% were dismissed for lack of jurisdiction, and in 50% of the dismissed grievances no actionable conduct was found. Sanctions were imposed in 15% of grievances closed in 2014.

For further information, please see the full Grievance Report at: <u>https://www.courts.wa.gov/content/PublicUpload/CPGB%20Annual%20Reports/201</u> <u>4%20Annual%20Report.pdf</u>

## **10. Regulations Committee**

# Proposed SOP 413 and Revised Regulations 102.4 and 702.2

Andy Heinz reported that proposed SOP 413, which is currently called Responsibilities of Guardianship Agencies, was first drafted because the Board was concerned about guardianship agencies owned by persons who were not certified professional guardians. Prior to drafting the SOP, the Board decided that CPG Agencies should be owned by Certified Professional Guardians only.

The proposed SOP and Regulations has been posted for public comment at least three times and has been pared down to its current state. The Attorney General was asked for clarification on this regulation and opined that SOP 413, in its current form does not address who can own a certified professional guardianship agency. This issue can be addressed by revising General Rule 23.

Regulations 102.4 and 702.2 are current regulations that define the responsibilities of the designated CPG; however, the SOP is being added because duties and practices should be stated in an SOP.

Motion: A motion was made and seconded to approve proposed

SOP 413 and modification of Regulations 102.4 and 702.2. The motion passed.

# <u>GR 31.1</u>

The Regulations Committee submitted the following revisions to Administrative Regulation 003 to implement GR 31.1. General Rule 31.1 supersedes Regulation 003.1 to 003.3.2

003.5 Posting Records. For a grievance or complaint that results in discipline to a professional guardian, the grievance or complaint, any response submitted by the professional guardian, the agreement or order imposing discipline, any order on appeal by the professional guardian, and all attachments or exhibits to the foregoing records shall be posted for public access on the website for the Administrative Office of the Court.

Judge Lawler noted that GR 31.1 will go into effect in June or July of 2015. General conversation and clarification among Board members continued. The Board agreed to post the language for comment.

# 11. Chair's Report

Approval of Minutes

Judge Lawler asked for changes or corrections to the March 9, 2015 proposed meeting minutes. There were no changes or corrections.

*Motion:* A motion was made and seconded to approve minutes from the March 9, 2015 meeting. The motion passed.

The next Board meeting is a teleconference scheduled for Monday, May 11, 2015.

# Recap of Motions from April 13, Meeting

otion Summary	Status
<i>Motion:</i> A motion was made and seconded to conditionally approve Nancy Snyder's application for certification. The motion passed.	Passed
<i>Motion:</i> A motion was made and seconded to approve the Emerging Issues topic "Communication". The new issue would become effective on January 1, 2016. The motion passed.	Passed
<i>Motion:</i> A motion was made and seconded to approve the language of the proposed SOP 413 and the modification of Regulation 102.4 and 702.2. The motion passed.	Passed
<i>Motion:</i> A motion was made and seconded to approve minutes from the March 9, 2015 meeting. The motion passed.	Passed

Action Items	Status
Post for public comment:	In Process
<ul> <li>Should the Board pursue development of a Guardianship</li> </ul>	
Ombusdsperson?	
The proposal to increase access to guardianship continuing	
education.	
<ul> <li>Regulation 003.5 Posting Records</li> </ul>	

PUILDING BRIDGES FOR CONTINUED BRIDGE BUILDERS

April 13, 2015

President

To: Certified Professional Guardian Board

From: Mindi R. Blanchard, M.Ed., CPG Bridge Builders, Ltd/ The Guardian Institute

RE: Improving the CPG Board's Perception of Professional Guardians

When the CPG Board was first developed I, and many of my colleagues, felt that the goal was to improve the industry of professional guardianship. Throughout the years, though, the attitude of the CPG Board as perceived by many professional guardians has diminished.

I have made a number of efforts to try to improve the perception of the CPG Board regarding the majority of professional guardians who are doing wonderful jobs, sometimes in very challenging situations but I don't feel that I have been successful in bringing an improved perception. I understand that the CPG Board works in a vacuum as they don't hear the success stories, only the egregious problems. But even the success stories have been received with an attitude that seems like suspicion.

I have given this a lot of thought and I finally realized that there is one question that hasn't been asked. So, I'm asking it now:

What do the hard-working CPGs need to do to improve the perception of the CPG Board?

This is not a rhetorical question. It is an honest question that needs an answer. I am asking that the CPG Board take time to discuss this question among themselves and respond within the next two months. We CPGs are willing to do what it takes but we have no idea what it will take to improve your perception of us without your input.

Respectfully Submitted,

Blanchard

Mindi R. Blanchard, M.Ed., CPG

P.O. Box 610 • Sequim • WA • 98382 Phone: 360-683-8334 • Fax: 360-683-8358 • www.bridgebldrs.com WSP Background Check Fee Increase



ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS

Callie T. Dietz State Court Administrator

Date: May 4, 2015

To: Certified Professional Guardianship Board

From: Staff

RE: WSP Background Check Fee Increase

April 30, 2015, Washington State Patrol (WSP) notified the Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC) that effective July 1, 2015 the fee for background checks will increase \$12. Currently, the application fee for guardian certification includes the fee for a background check; therefore the Board will need to increase its application fee of \$225 by at least \$12 or incur a loss.

Staff also learned that WSP will not implement Rap Back, the new background procedure that would allow the Board to receive notification each time a guardian applicant or a certified guardian has a change in criminal history, this year, as previously reported. WSP expects to implement the new process in 2017.

Staff recommends immediately increasing the \$225 application fee to cover the scheduled \$12 background check fee increase.

#### **Bondon**, Shirley

From:	Brown, Lynette (WSP) <lynette.brown@wsp.wa.gov></lynette.brown@wsp.wa.gov>
Sent:	Thursday, April 30, 2015 8:12 AM
Subject:	New State Fee Notice
Attachments:	Flyer State Fee Increase July 2015.docx

#### FEE CHANGE NOTIFICATION

A fee study was conducted for the Washington State Patrol (WSP) and the following fees are increasing effective July 1, 2015. Please refer to which applies for your agency below.

**<u>Billed Accounts</u>** (you send only the fingerprint card to WSP either by livescan or mail) All applicant fingerprint cards received at WSP after July 1, 2015 will be billed the new fee (recommended for mailed in fingerprints; 2 weeks prior to the 1<sup>st</sup> of July you charge the applicant the new fee and hold the fingerprints until the 1<sup>st</sup> to mail in to WSP)

#### Pay by Check

If you mail a check with your fingerprint card to WSP the old fee amount must be received no later than Tuesday, June 30, 2015. Checks with the old fee received after that date will be rejected back for the correct amount. (WSP recommends a week prior to July 1 you charge the new fee and hold the prints until the 1<sup>st</sup> to mail to WSP)

Old Fee		New Fee	
Mailed	Livescan	Mailed	Livescan
State fee \$26	State fee \$16	State fee \$38	State fee \$20
<u>FBI fee \$14.75</u> Total \$40.75	<u>FBI fee \$14.75</u> Total \$30.75	<u>FBI fee \$14.75</u> Total \$52.75	<u>FBI fee \$14.75</u> Total \$34.75
10tal \$40.75	10tal (450.75	10101 402.70	
Mailed Volunteer	Livescan Volunteer	Mailed Volunteer	Livescan Volunteer
State fee \$26	State fee \$16	State fee \$38	State fee \$20
<u>FBI fee \$13.50</u> Total \$39.50	<u>FBI fee \$13.50</u> Total \$29.50	<u>FBI fee \$13.50</u> Total \$51.50	<u>FBI fee \$13.50</u> Total \$33.50
	···· + · · ·	· · · · · · · · ·	···· + · · · ·

#### \*\*\*Note for Law Enforcement Only\*\*\*

A Concealed Pistol License (CPL) is only billed the FBI fee. The fee is the same for mailed submissions and Livescan. The fee you will be billed is not changing and is still \$14.75.

#### \*\*\*Note to all agencies that refer individuals to WSP for our fingerprinting service\*\*\*

The fingerprinting service at the WSP office in Olympia is increasing from \$13.00 to \$19.00.

For questions concerning the new fee, please contact the Background Check Unit Supervisor, Lynette Brown at (360)534-2109 or email <u>Lynette.Brown@wsp.wa.gov</u>.

*Lynette Brown* Background Check Unit Supervisor Washington State Patrol Identification and Criminal History Section Comments

Date: April 6, 2015

To: CPG Board Continuing Education

From: Mindi R. Blanchard, M.Ed., CPG President, Bridge Builders, Ltd.

RE: Continuing Education Credit – New Emerging Issue

[ELECTRONICALLY SUBMITTED]

I am writing to address the proposal to change the current Emerging Issues category from "Managing a Guardian Business" to "Effective Listening and Communication Skills."

While everyone can benefit from improving listening and communication skills, to make it a requirement of continuing education can be problematic. Unless the Education Committee has some idea of where to find speakers for this topic, sponsors are going to have a difficult time finding a variety of speakers.

I have had mediation groups do workshops on this topic at each the Bremerton and Spokane conferences and I've have had to pay them for their time. Many sponsors do not pay for their speakers. Other than mediation groups, I personally have no idea where to find other speakers on the topic; especially those who would be willing to speak for free.

I would like to suggest that the education committee identify and approve mediation organizations in as many counties as possible so that this resource would be made easily available to CPGs who wish to take this. Most mediation groups are associated with the local courts.

The Education Committee needs to also be aware that while workshops are preferable and often a better way to learn, a sponsor typically needs to pay those conducting the workshop as preparation takes a lot of time and organization. Again, many sponsors do not pay their speakers.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mindi R. Blanchard

Mindi R. Blanchard, M.Ed., CPG

Date: April 6, 2015

To: CPG Board – Education Committee

- From: Mindi R. Blanchard, M.Ed., CPG President, Bridge Builders, Ltd.
- RE: Proposal to Increase Continuing Education Offerings for Certified Professional Guardians

#### [ELECTRONICALLY SUBMITTED]

From what I understand, this proposal makes the assumption that the lack of sponsors is directly related to the fees charged. While fees may be a minor issue, I don't think that it is the primary issue.

Currently, the application process for continuing education sponsors is cumbersome and time consuming. I understand that many, if not most, professions require the same documentation to be submitted but then there is the list of questions regarding the type of classroom style, etc. I wonder how pertinent these questions really are to get a course approved. Sponsors of free courses are not going to be motivated to navigate the application process even if they are not required to pay fee. Often, these sponsors are volunteers themselves so they are not interested in additional work.

I would like to propose that the continuing education committee streamline the application process and make it possible for GPGs to submit applications for credit on an individual basis. This way the CPGs can take advantage of free courses and then send in an application for credit themselves. Even if the education committee still wants to charge a fee \$25.00 for one credit hour is still less than the average credit hour rates that the UW, WAPG and The Guardian Institute charge (I believe they charge an average of \$30.00 per credit hour). The education committee might even make it possible for CPGs to submit applications for as little as ½-hour in order to get credit for guest speakers at networking groups.

In summary, I would suggest:

- 1. Streamline the current application process.
- 2. Pre-approve continuing education for organizations that provide courses/conferences on an annual or more frequent basis. Maybe have an annual fee required for the priviledge.
- 3. Allow CPGs to submit applications individually for credit <u>after</u> a course. There could be a form specifically designed for this, which then would not require copies of the evaluations, sign in sheet, etc.
- 4. Put out on the listserve both unapproved and approved courses that are available; separating them to minimize confusion.

I believe that this would be a more effective way to encourage more sponsors and also encourage CPGs to take advantage of courses in their immediate area.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mindi R. Blanchard

Mindi R. Blanchard, M.Ed., CPG